
The purpose of this amendment is to: 
1. Address questions that have been received in regards to the call for proposals. 
2. Amend Section 3.1 Standard Instruction, Clauses and Conditions   

 
Part 1. Address questions that have been received in regards to the call for proposals. 

 
1. Under the challenges section there are five options within #16 but only one that the proposal 

address.  In the proposal can we identify #16c as the challenge of interest or do we need to 
consider all the points in #16? 

a. The Bidder is to identify the S&T challenge as 16c).  Note that the tool has radio buttons 
that are to be selected that correspond to each element of a challenge (e.g. 1, 2, 3, 4a, 
4b, 5, etc.) and in this case, the Bidder is not able to select 16 but must specify one of 
16a, 16b, 16c, 16d or 16e. 
 

2. Regarding the ‘partnership requirements’ as mentioned in the section 3.3.2 of CSSP CFP Bidder's 
Guidebook for 2016. Are we allowed to select an international partner as the second mandatory 
partner for the project type ‘Studies-Type I’ 

a. An international partner may serve as the second mandatory partner. However, a 
minimum of 50 percent of the total project cost must consist of Canadian content 
(goods, services, or a mix of goods and services) – see section 3.2 of  Bidder’s Guidebook 
2016 for additional information. 
 

3. Can you please advise of the submission date for the proposal? Could you also provide the 
Phase II submission date as well? 

a. This year’s CFP is a single stage process – and all submissions are due by the date and 
time found at: https://buyandsell.gc.ca/procurement-data/tender-notice/PW-16-
00731441  
 

4. Regarding “Who may submit a proposal”. Can a University Professor apply? Do I require a 
government partner?  

a. A university professor may submit a proposal under this CFP - as there is no restriction 
to the type of entity in the public or private sectors that may apply.  In all instances, a 
government partner, from any order of government, is required (like National Research 
Council of Canada).   
 

5. We are a private entity that intends to respond to this CFP but we have not yet identified a 
Canadian Government Department that can act as a partner.  To assist us in making this possible 
in the short timeframe, can the CSSP assist us in any way by for example providing leads, advice, 
contact lists, access to an inside liaison, or some other form of match making 

a. The DRDC CSS does not engage in match making activities to facilitate partnerships for 
the purposes of the CFP.   We recommend that Bidders seeking governmental partners 
by identifying who stands to directly benefit from, or operationalize the resulting S&T, 
and take steps to contact these entities.  Two sources of information include: 1) the 
communities of practice section of the CSSP website 
(http://www.science.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=161D202C-1) that identifies engaged 
government partners; and 2) the GEDS directory (http://geds20-sage20.ssc-
spc.gc.ca/en/GEDS20/ ) which permits searching for Public Servants by skill, title and 
federal government department.   
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6. As mentioned under, Section 3.3.1 : “The Lead Bidder must be a Canadian Bidder” and, section 
5.1. 7) “the Lead Bidder and Lead Government Department are Canadian”.  Can a Canadian 
Permanent Resident (non-Canadian national), working in a Canadian organization, submit the 
proposal as Lead Bidder 

a. Yes, a Permanent Resident who resides or carries on business at a specified address in 
Canada (i.e., conducts activities on a permanent basis in Canada) is deemed Canadian 
for the purposes of this CFP and may submit a proposal as the Lead Bidder.  
 

7. On page 2, under Areas of Science and Tech Research, Critical infrastructure and Resilience are 
noted. I am seeking clarity on what critical infrastructure this is referring to and whether 
resilience relates to the security of stored data and the effectiveness of data recovery in the 
case of downtime.  

a. Canada’s Critical Infrastructure (CI) efforts are targeted at 10 sectors: 
• Health 
• Food 
• Finance 
• Water 
• Information and Communication Technology 
• Safety 
• Energy and utilities 
• Manufacturing 
• Government 
• Transportation 

 
Some of the CSSP’S CI efforts are focused on: 
• improving and protecting the resiliency of infrastructure; 
• developing common operations in all critical infrastructure (CI) sectors; 
• advising on preventative or responsive action; 
• collaborating with international partner organizations to address areas of mutual 

concern; and 
• supporting the development and transition of new S&T that addresses CI safety 

and security issues. 
 

Accordingly, data centres to be applicable must satisfy a sector and focus as 
mentioned above.  Note that this CFP is only seeking proposals that s address pre-
defined S&T challenges (refer to Annex A of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016). 

 
8. Where can I find a word document submission form? 

a. You can contact heather.palmer@pwgsc.gc.ca to request a word document. Please note 
that all unclassified submissions must be done through https://cssp-cfp-
2016.fluidreview.com/. 
 

9. Under project types, section 2.2.1 - can a workshop be considered as a Type 1 or Type 2 study? 
a. Studies can vary considerably in scale and complexity – for CSSP purposes however, they 

must align with the descriptions provided in the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016.  Given the 
inherit flexibility with studies, the Bidder’s response provided under 1a) of the Scientific 
or Technical Merit section of the point-rated criteria is key and will provide Bidders with 
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an opportunity to elaborate on the scope of the project approach and project type.  This 
allows Bidders to demonstrate how a workshop is an appropriate approach and satisfies 
the description of a study. 
 

10. Under project types, section 2.2.3 - can a table top exercise be considered as a Technology 
Demonstration? A tabletop exercise involves key personnel discussing simulated scenarios in an 
informal setting, and can be used to assess plans, policies, and procedures. 

• Projects under the technology demonstration type seek to advance the maturity of a 
technology, application or capability by embedding S&T in an operational context.  
Discussions on simulated scenarios to assess the plans, policies and procedures do not 
advance technology readiness levels (see Annex E of the Bidders’ Guidebook 2016) – 
and therefore, these activities do not satisfy the description of technology 
demonstration. 
 

11. Can the project funds from the Lead Bidder and partner government departments be 
considered as a cash co-investment? 

• Yes, funds contributed directly to the proposal from the Lead Bidder and partner 
government departments are considered cash co-investments. Cash contributions are 
strongly encouraged as they demonstrate direct support by the Lead Bidder and 
partners for the proposal.  
 

12. Under Eligible costs, is the purchase of specialized items/devices/equipment for project work 
supported, or does it have to be rental or previously purchased items? 

• The purchase of specialized items/devices/equipment for project work is not supported 
as an eligible cost (refer to Annex F of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016). 
 

13. What is the required level of signature required for an Operational Support letter? 
• There is no required level of signature required for Operational Support letters.  

However, the impact of such letters is greater where the signature is from an individual 
with a level that can influence decision-making and operational direction.  
 

14. We are putting together a proposal for funding which will be over $1M in total.  Although 
PWGSC would provide the funding, do we need to submit a TB Sub for Project Authority and 
Spending Authority or does PWGSC handle the authorities for all departments that receive 
funding in one consolidated Treasury Board Submission?  

• The Call for Proposals is competitive process which includes the evaluation of proposals 
and therefore, project authority or spending authority approvals from Treasury Board 
are not required.  However, all projects must adhere to the requirements in the Policy 
on the Project Management of Projects.  Note that there are additional requirements for 
projects with total costs $1M or more. 

 
15. Are the S&T Challenges in Annex A generated primarily by government end-users and by 

Canada’s Centre for Security Science (CSS)?  Or do they reflect RFI suggestions submitted by 
teams who plan to bid under this RFP?  (The latter approach is used by the CSA’s STDP program, 
for example.)   

• The S&T Challenges for the CSSP are generated via an internal process at DRDC CSS, 
which includes consideration of various factors including gaps identified by government 



end-users.  Accordingly, DRDC CSS does not utilize the RFI process to generate 
suggestions for S&T Challenges from potential bidders.    
 

16. Section 3.4.1 of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016 contains a link to submit a proposal.  However, 
when we log onto Fluidreview there does not appear to be any form or document to fill out. On 
the site we only have our proposal from 2012.  Can you please tell us which forms or documents 
to fill out and how to submit them on Fluidreview.  Similarly, I do not understand the link in 
section 3.1 of the Guidebook.   

• Fluidreview advances registered users who click on “Create New Submission” button to 
the submission stage which allows Bidders to commence populating information related 
to their proposal. Links are embedded throughout the submission stage to prompt 
Bidders to download the applicable document (i.e. template).  Subsequently, templates 
are to be uploaded to the submission once they are complete.  If technical difficulties 
persist, please reference the Help option in the upper right corner for additional 
guidance.   

• The link in section 3.1 is incorrect; the correct link is: https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-
and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual. The Standard 
Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual provides suppliers and clients of PWGSC 
with information on clauses, conditions and templates commonly used in the 
contracting process by the federal government and PWGSC. Its contents are referred to 
in bidding opportunities and contracting activities; however, the manual is used 
primarily by PWGSC's contracting officers. 
 

17. Where can I find a Microsoft Word document submission form? 
b. You can contact Heather.Palmer@pwgsc.gc.ca to request a submission form as a 

Microsoft Word document. Please note that all unclassified submissions must be 
completed through the online tool (https://cssp-cfp-2016.fluidreview.com/). 
 

18. Is there a particular sequence / order in which each section has to appear? 
• All unclassified submissions must be completed via the online tool (https://cssp-cfp-

2016.fluidreview.com/), which identifies the submission sequence.  The classified 
submission form is also prescriptive in that it identifies the submission sequence. In both 
instances, the submission sequence is presented in the same order as Annex B.2  (i.e., point-
rated evaluation criteria) of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016.  
 

19. The website doesn’t have a section to submit the items listed in Annex B.2 – Point-Rated 
Evaluation Criteria of the guide. How are these to be submitted? 
• Once a Bidder is registered as a user on the online tool (https://cssp-cfp-

2016.fluidreview.com/), they have access to the “Submission Stage”.  This stage identifies 
tasks to be completed – namely, information that needs to be populated (i.e. the submission 
form and relevant annexes).  The “Submission Form” requires information to be populated 
about Bidder, partner(s), and the project.  It is here, in the Submission Form, that Bidders 
are able to populate their responses to the point-rated evaluation criteria.  Note that the 
templates are to be downloaded, populated, and then uploaded to the online tool. 
 

20. Does the formatting of the templates have to be strictly adhered to (e.g., colour, font, etc.), or 
can the corporate formatting of the submitting department be used as long as the content is 
consistent with the templates? 
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• When possible, the format of the template is to be followed as provided by the DRDC CSS.  
However, in all instances, it is key that the information requested in a template be timely 
received and easily accessible without any manipulation.    
 

21. A and B are partners in this proposal. Given that A is the Crown entity that manages and directs 
B’s work, does B need to be listed as a signatory partner? 
• The requirement is for each proposal to have a minimum of two partner organizations.  If 

Entity B can be differentiated from Entity A and Entity B plays a significant role in the 
proposal - for transparency purposes, it is recommended for Entity B to be listed as a 
signatory partner.   
 

22. A and B have a long-standing arrangement to transfer funds for technical services via the 
Interdepartmental Financial Arrangement process. If they wish to use that process to manage 
A’s work and funding, does A have to be listed as a signatory partner? 
• The requirement is for each proposal to have a minimum of two partner organizations.  

Therefore, Entity A does not have to be listed as signatory partner.  
   

23. The CFP guide suggests that a commencement date for work be based on a November 2016 (or 
later) release of funds. Given the non-definitive date for the release of funds, would it be 
acceptable to quote the time requirements for the execution of tasks in number of weeks? 
• It is acceptable to calculate the time requirements for the execution of tasks in the number 

of weeks – and this method may be useful for the contracting negotiation stage, should the 
proposal be selected. However, please refer to the templates for the specific requirement 
for quoting time frames (e.g. the Budget Table template asks for cost to be identified per 
year).   
 

24. How would one go about finding the appropriate government partner for a project? 
• We recommend that Bidders seeking governmental partners by first identifying who stands 

to directly benefit from, or operationalize the resulting S&T, and then proceed to take steps 
to contact these entities.  Two sources of information include: 1) the communities of 
practice section of the CSSP website 
(http://www.science.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=161D202C-1) that identifies engaged 
government partners; and 2) the GEDS directory (http://geds20-sage20.ssc-
spc.gc.ca/en/GEDS20/ ) which permits searching for Public Servants by skill, title and federal 
government department.   

 
25. What is the end game for these projects?  

• The “end game” is to contribute possible solutions to identified S&T challenges facing 
Canada’s public safety and security landscape.  The up-take of the resulting solutions will 
vary depending on their effectiveness, maturity, and other factors as determined by key 
stakeholders that deal with the policy, operations, and intelligence issues surrounding 
Canada’s public safety and security. 
 

26. Who owns the intellectual property (IP)? Are there contracts as a result? 
• The default position of Canada is to allow contractors to retain the IP rights. However, since 

Canada has contributed to the cost of developing the Foreground Information, the Bidder 
grants to Canada a license to exercise all IP rights in the Foreground Information for 
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Canada's activities.  Refer to section 6.2 of the Bidder’s Guidebook 2016 for additional 
information and relevant links related to IP.  

 
27. What advantages or disadvantages is there with the CSSP challenge over the BCIP?  

• The CSSP and BCIP have different objectives– namely, the CSSP seeks solutions to S&T 
challenges in the public safety and security domain and the BCIP is committed to supporting 
innovation by bridging the “pre-commercialization gap”, supporting Canadian suppliers, 
providing real-world evaluation of pre-commercial goods and services, and improving the 
efficiency and effectiveness of government operations.  The Bidder is best positioned to 
identify which program they wish to submit a proposal.  If a proposal is submitted to both 
programs, the Bidder must identify in their CSSP submission that they are seeking additional 
funding from the BCIP program.  

 
28. How does the GOC transfer funds for approved projects to the lead bidder who is a provincial 

entity. 
• Funds are transferred to a provincial entity via a Memorandum of Agreement.  

 
29. With regards to challenge 4: 
a) Do you have a description or definition of "interdisciplinary resilience"? 

• “Interdisciplinary types of resilience” – refers to the identification and integration of 
evidence-based resilience indicators drawn from the literature of different disciplinary 
backgrounds (e.g. psycho-sociological resilience, engineering resilience, political resilience) 
or multi-factor resilience (e.g. disaster, terrorism or crime).  

b) Can you describe what a "best practise strategy" is?  
• In this instance, a “best practice strategy” refers to the drawing from best practice 

approaches to develop a novel plan or scalable process that can and should be applied to 
enable under-represented emergency management stakeholders. 

c) It is not clear how dealing with under-represented groups in specific contexts can be "scalable 
for whole of society resilience"  
• “Scalable for whole of society resilience” – refers to the CSSP being a whole-of-government 

initiative that requires the projects it funds to contribute solutions that have a national 
impact (i.e. scaled across multiple communities and/or provinces/territories).    

 
Part 2 Amend Section 3.1 Standard Instruction, Clauses and Conditions   
At Section 3.1 Standard Instructions, Clauses, and Conditions;  
Delete: 
 All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the CFP solicitation by number, date and title are 
set out in the Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual (found at: http://www.tpsgc-
pwgsc.gc.ca/ecologisation-greening/achats-procurement/politique-policy-eng.html) issued by PWGSC.  
Insert:  
All instructions, clauses and conditions identified in the CFP solicitation by number, date and title are set 
out in the Standard Acquisition Clauses and Conditions Manual (found at: 
https://buyandsell.gc.ca/policy-and-guidelines/standard-acquisition-clauses-and-conditions-manual) 
issued by PWGSC. 
 

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN UNCHANGED 
 
 


